STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
March 14, 2001
8:03 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Con Bunde, Chair
Representative Brian Porter
Representative Joe G een
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Gary Stevens
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representati ve G etchen Guess

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 71

"An Act relating to the education of children with disabilities
and of gifted children; relating to the Governor's Council on
Disabilities and Speci al Educat i on; maki ng conform ng
amendnents; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BILL NO 94

"An Act relating to initiatives for quality schools; relating to
pupi| conpetency testing and the issuance of secondary school
di pl omas; relating to certain reports regarding academc
performance of schools; and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 71

SHORT TI TLE: EDUC. OF DI SABLED OR G FTED CHI LDREN
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST COF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/17/01 0112 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/17/01 0112 (H EDU, HES, FIN

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- March 14, 2001



01/ 17/ 01 0112 (H FN 1: ZERO( EED)

01/ 17/ 01 0112 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
01/ 17/ 01 0112 (H REFERRED TO EDU

02/ 07/ 01 (H EDU AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 07/ 01 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 07/ 01 (H M NUTE( EDU)

03/ 14/ 01 (H EDU AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

BRUCE JOHNSQON, Deputy Conm ssion of Education
O fice of the Conm ssioners

Depart ment of Education & Early Devel opnent
801 West 10th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 71.

GREGORY MALONEY, State Director

of Special Education

Depart ment of Education & Early Devel opnent

801 West 10th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 71.

PHI LI P REEVES, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Human Servi ces Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Depart ment of Law

PO BOX 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 71.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-14, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the House Special Commttee on Education
neeting to order at 8:03 p.m Menbers present at the call to
order were Representatives Bunde, Porter, WIson, Joule, and
Guess. Representatives Green and Stevens arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 71-EDUC. OF DI SABLED OR G FTED CHI LDREN

CHAIR BUNDE announced the conmttee would hear testinony on
HOUSE BILL NO. 71, "An Act relating to the education of children

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- March 14, 2001



with disabilities and of gifted children; relating to the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education; making
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 0156

BRUCE JOHNSON, Deputy Comm ssion of Education, Ofice of the
Comm ssioners, Departnment of Education & Early Devel opnent
(EED), cane forth and stated that HB 71 will bring [the EED|
into conpliance with the federal governnent requirenents for
special education and wll allow [the EED] to continue to
receive the resources available at the federal |evel. He
mentioned that [the EED] does not portray that its noney is
currently in jeopardy with the federal governnent; however, [the
EED] is under corrective action. He remarked that |ast year
there was $11 million or $12 mllion in federal dollars and now
there is about $19 million. He added that nost of that noney is
passed on to the individual districts to offset their costs,
particularly with students who have severe disabilities. He
added that [the EED] has also attenpted to differentiate between
children with disabilities and children who are identified as
gifted and tal ented.

MR, JOHNSON nmentioned that [the EED] had felt there were no
resources for it to do nuch with the exceptional child who is
identified as gifted and tal ented. Therefore, it was decided
that since the noney was going to the districts through the
bl ock grant program [the districts] should have full control
with what happens wth the services they elect to provide to
gifted and talented children. He added that [the EED] had heard
from a strong constituency that wanted the state oversight;
therefore, there is a nodest fiscal note attached to the bill to
provide this and other services in the area of GI (gifted and
tal ented).

Nunmber 0445

CHAI R BUNDE asked if [the EED] would have a negative reaction if
"30 cal endar days" was changed to "30 school days" under |EPs
(i ndi vidual education prograns).

GREGORY MALONEY, State Director of Special Education, Departnent
of Education & Early Devel opnent, answered that in federal |aw
it reads "30 days", which is calendar days. He added that
"school days" could be restrictive.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- March 14, 2001



CHAIR BUNDE asked if [it would have to be "30 days"] in order to
be in federal conpliance.

MR. MALONEY remarked that [the EED] cannot restrict the federa
| aw.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that [the Anchorage School District] had
concerns about due process, the one-tiered hearing process, and
the additional costs.

Number 0535

MR. MALONEY replied that what is in place currently is a two-
tiered hearing process. |If a parent has a due process issue, he
or she files the request with the district, which assigns a
hearing officer. Currently, appeals cone to [the EED. [ The
EED] is proposing a one-tiered system in which it would receive
the requests for the due process hearings and assign the hearing
of ficer through a hearing officer selection process. He stated
that the cost concerns that the [Anchorage School District] has
is in regard to whether the hearing officer lives outside of the
Anchorage area. He noted that the mpjority of the hearing
officers live within the Anchorage area; therefore, [the EED
does not believe that would be a strong consideration in terns

of the cost. The legal fees that would be charged would be the
sane, presunably. Therefore, the additional costs would be for
transportation if the [hearing officer] was not living in
Anchor age.

MR. MALONEY stated that it is not easy for [the EED] to track
the due process issues when the districts admnistrate the
hearings. He clarified that [the proposed system w |l mnake the
process cleaner and allow [the EED] to track the issues in order
to address them through trainings and professional devel opnent.

Number 0668

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether the schools could start the
due process so that they don't have to wait for any action from
[the EED .

MR. MALONEY answered that they do under the current system

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if [the EED] wants to change that.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- March 14, 2001



MR. MALONEY replied that the district would no | onger assign the
hearing officer; [the EED would. Therefore, the districts
woul d not receive the initial requests fromthe parents.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if that occurs when [the parents]
have gone through the due process and sonething hasn't worked
out at the local |evel.

MR. MALONEY answered that under the current system that would be
correct. He clarified that [the EED] would be involved if the
district or the parent disagreed with the decision regarding the
due process hearing. Under the proposed system the [EED] would
initially assign the hearing officer.

Nunmber 0766

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whet her, under this new program the
parents wll realize that they don't initially go to the |ocal
school level for [requests].

MR. MALONEY responded that if the districts receive [the
requests], they will forward them to the [the EED]. He added
that [the EED] wll provide trainings for the parents and
notification will be in the procedural safeguard notice, which
parents receive.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON stated that she is concerned with the
limt of 30 days.

MR. MALONEY responded that the 30 days refers to the IEP plans.
He clarified that the due process has a separate tineline.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if this is essentially taking away
sone | ocal control and giving it to the [EED

MR. MALONEY explained that in terns of the due process hearing,
it wuld be the [EED] rather than the local district assigning
the hearing officer. He noted that the first significant
procedural safeguard is a process called nediation. He
explained that anytinme [parents and school districts] have
di sagreenents over a student's educational program a neutral,
trained nediator is brought in and the issues are resolved
t hrough conmuni cati on. He stated that the second procedura
safeguard has to do with a conplaint investigation. |[If there is
a disagreenment, an admnistrative conplaint can be filed under
[the EED] and a trained conplaint investigator is assigned to

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- March 14, 2001



the case who collects the information. A report is then witten
that may contain corrective actions if necessary.

Number 0954

MR. MALONEY explained that there are three formal processes
provided to parents. Due process is the nost significant one in
that it tends to be the nost "legalistic" and npbst expensive.
He added that [the EED] encourages nediation as well as for
districts and parents to have communication prior to this point.
He noted that through the [IEP process there should be
identification of issues that are not working well. He remarked
that [the EED] would be concerned if the due process hearing is
seen as the conmuni cati on nmechani sm

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked where in the process the school and
the parents try to work things out first.

MR. MALONEY responded that the best-case scenario would be in
the 1EP neeting, where differences are being identified. He
added that there are tinmes when this doesn't happen, and that is
where these three processes are provided under federal |aw -
medi ati on, conplaint investigation, and due process. He added
that it is up to the parent to choose which one to pursue.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked who would be picking up the bill if
the [EED] has to be contacted for a due process [hearing].

VR. MALONEY replied that the districts wuld still be
responsible for paying for the due process hearings. He

reiterated that one of the reasons [for the new process] is for
[the EED] to know which due process hearings are occurring and
to track the issues regarding students with disabilities. He
noted that this is also to encourage districts and parents to
comuni cate prior to the point at which a due process hearing is
bei ng requested. He added that anytine a due process hearing is
requested, the hearing officer, by law, has to notify the parent
of the availability of nediation.

Nunber 1163

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether [the EED] could mandate the
schools to inform the departnent every tinme a due process
hearing occurs, since it seens the only concern is not finding
out about them She also asked if [the EED] is feeling that
[the process] is not being done properly in sone areas.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- March 14, 2001



MR. MALONEY replied that there are sone concerns with how the

process is handl ed. He stated, in terns of the l|ocal control
issue, that he thinks [the EED] is in line with what other
states have done. It would be a nore efficient process. He

added that the <costly part would conme from [nodifying the
al ready i npl enent ed procedures].

Nunmber 1238

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if it is possible to get sonebody
outside the area of interest since the random selection [for the
hearing officer] is froma statew de pool

MR. MALONEY answered that the pool is primarily from the
Anchor age area. He noted that [the EED] has tried to have
regional representation. Under this systemit would be a random
process and each participant wuld have the opportunity to
randomy "bunp" one person.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN renarked that he is concerned that there
will be increased cost if a conplaint occurs out of [a hearing
officer's] district.

MR. MALONEY replied that there could potentially be additional
costs. He noted that districts are currently paying for hearing
of ficers. He explained that in the current system the district
will frequently provide the nanes of three [hearing officers].
If any are disagreed upon, then the fourth nanme is the one
assi gned.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN remarked that it seens [the EED] is working
toward an inefficient central control.

Nunber 1464

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked where hearing officers for the rura
areas are from

MR. MALONEY answered that there is a pool of trained hearing
officers who are primarily fromthe Anchorage area.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked whether there would be a cost anyway
for the rural districts.

MR. MALONEY replied that it depends on the nature of the

heari ng. He explained that hearings could be conducted in a
nunber of ways for costs to be kept at a mninmm He stated

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- March 14, 2001



that the hearing officers wll be from the sane pool [as the
current pool], and the only change would be the way in which
t hey are assigned.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked if there is a perception from the
parents, under the current way, that there mght be a bias [wth
the hearing officers].

MR. MALONEY answered that perceptions of parents could certainly
be that. He explained that this is why parents have the
opportunity to exclude certain hearing officers. He said he
thinks this wll actually be a cost savings because the [EED]
woul d be bearing sone of the administrative costs for assigning
those hearing officers. He added that in <creating this
| egislation [the EED] consulted with the "parent in training
information center,” the governor's council on special education
and devel opnental disabilities, and the Disability Law Center
[of Al aska], none of which expressed significant concern about
this particular piece of |egislation.

Nunmber 1666

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER stated that the debate is over a dispute
between parents and a school district, both of whom should be

advancing toward resolution on equal |evels. He remarked that
if the parents, rather than the school district, [pick the
hearing officers], the cost will virtually be the sane.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked, if there's one pool of hearing
officers, whether the district or the state is going to choose
it.

MR. MALONEY answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if there is sonebody the district
woul d choose that is not in the state's pool.

MR. MALONEY answered no, and said the state is currently
responsi ble for qualifying the hearing officers.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if the state would conduct a random
process instead of the process that occurs at the district
| evel , which may or may not be random

MR. MALONEY replied that districts would provide [three] nanes
from a pool of nanes. The parents can choose to accept any of

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- March 14, 2001



the names; if not, then the fourth nanme would be the [hearing
of ficer] sel ected.

Number 1779
REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked how many hearings get appeal ed now.

MR. MALONEY answered that this information has not been tracked
very well Dbecause [the EED] doesn't really know the anount of
hearings that are occurring. This year, so far, there have not
been any hearings that have been appeal ed. He stated that the
option of the court is always avail able. He added that the
court may direct a person to exhaust that appeal process, and
due process can be settled prior to the resolution. This allows
[the EED] to better handle that information.

Nunmber 1866

CHAIR BUNDE remarked that it seenms as if the argunent [that the
EED] wants this [legislation] for better tracking is a pretty
thin argunent. He stated that [the EED] could sinply request
that information through regulation. He said he would feel nore
confortable with [requests] immediately going to the state if
[the EED] required nediation first. He asked why this should go
to the suprene court before the district court.

MR. MALONEY answered that the reason [nediation] is not required
is because it is a voluntary process by design. Under the due
process procedures it is required that parents are made aware of
[the option of] nediation by the hearing officer.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if the courts m ght require nediation.

MR. MALONEY answered that the court could require [the parents]
to enter into nmediation, but [the EED] cannot.

Nunber 1971

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER remarked, "If | were a school district, |
woul d be inclined to try to take care of all the local options |
had at ny avail before | took this step.”

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN comented that there haven't been any
requests to advance because they have been handl ed under the
current system He asked if this is the type of situation where
"if the systemain't broke, fix it till it is."

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- March 14, 2001



MR. MALONEY answered that frequently because of the costs of due
process hearings there have been settlenents rather than
conpl etions of due process hearings; therefore, [the EED] does
not necessarily get information on the issues that would have
been brought up during those hearings. He clarified that [the
EED] is aware of conplaint investigations that cone directly to
the state. [ The EED] assigns the conplaint investigator and
does the report. Wth mediation, [the EED] gets progress
reports fromthe nediati on system about what the outcones were.

Number 2059

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if sone of the benefits for having
this at the state level are to see trends in the state of where
the law isn't being applied the way is should be, to see if
there is a lack of training, or to see whether there is a
problem in a district with inplenenting IDEA (Individuals wth
Di sabilities Education Act).

MR. MALONEY answered that he would agree. The primary purpose
of the due process hearings is to make sure that the individua

student program is being inplenmented appropriately. [ The EED]
is required to report to the federal governnment any due process
i ssues, conplaint issues, and nediation issues that come up. He
added that not only is it a conpliance issue, but it is a
training issue and a resource isSsue. He explained that [the
EED] is going to use the resources available to address the
i npl enentation as to whether there are regional, district, or
statew de trends. He nmentioned that [the EED] nonitors schoo

districts by going into a district and |ooking at how speci al
education requirenents are inplenented.

Number 2177

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that she wants the whole process to
flow ,and if the option of due process is the ultimte process
that takes place, [everyone] should know about it. She stated
that she is concerned about the cost in the long run and asked
if there are people trained in areas "out in the fringes," or if
they would have to be flown in.

MR. MALONEY stated that the pool of hearing officers would be
the sane wunder either system and there wouldn't be a big
difference in cost. [ The EED] does ongoing recruiting in order
to have as big and as qualified a pool as possible. He said the
difference in costs would primarily be the admnistrative costs
associated with the school district for doing the hearing, since

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- March 14, 2001



the staff time would be transferred to [the EED]. The district
woul d be involved in the hearings solely as a participant rather
than as a participant and an adm ni strator.

Number 2304

CHAI R BUNDE asked how many due process [hearings] occurred | ast
year.

MR. MALONEY responded that he is not aware of any that canme in
| ast year through the [EED] as an appeal process.

CHAI R BUNDE asked whether, as a result of the lack of reporting,
M. Maloney was not aware of any that had gone through at the
| ocal |evel.

MR. MALONEY answered that [the EED] has a "spotted" record, at
best in terns of what happens at the local |evel regarding due
process. He stated that as of now, since the district pays for
the hearing officer and assigns the hearing officer, it is
difficult for [the EED] to track because there is no upfront
i nformation regarding whether or not the hearing has been filed
for in the first place

TAPE 01-14, SIDE B
Nunber 2343

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked for a rough overview of how nuch is
spent and received on special education. He also asked how nuch
the state and the local school districts are involved in the
cost of special education or whether that is covered by federal
progr ans.

MR. JOHNSON replied that the 20-percent block grant added to the
foundation program is to cover extra costs associated with the
children with disabilities and gifted and talented students;
bilingual and vocational education are added to that. He
clarified that those resources are earmarked for those students
even though they can be spent in any area, since there isn't
categorical funding. He noted that the federal dollars, which
are anticipated for next year in excess of $19 mllion, are to
help with the extraordinary costs, particularly those associ ated
with some of the processes that are nandated by the federal
government as well as those associated with children with severe
disabilities who may require full-tinme nurses.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- March 14, 2001



MR, JOHNSON remarked that depending on the district, sone feel
the noney has adequately nmet the needs of children wth
disabilities as well as those who are gifted and tal ented. He
stated that he thinks other districts are experiencing "erosion"
and that the costs continue to go up, particularly with what

[the EED] ternms as intensive students. He explained that in a
formula, there is about $20,000 for each of the identified
i ntensive children beyond any other funding. He remarked that

[the EED] is hearing that costs are escalating and nore students
are being identified, particularly in the intensive category;
therefore, there are costs to the state and to the |ocal schoo
districts. He added that [the EED] often gets into chall enges
with famlies where a district attenpts to narrow its costs and
believes it has a program that neets the students' needs, but
where the parents feel the district is just being a cheapskate
and that students nmay need a program outside the |ocal conmunity
or a very specific program

MR, JOHNSON stated that at the due process level, a district is
inclined to want to settle to ensure that the student is served
as well as to protect the district's resources.

Nunber 2183

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he is not sure that diverting to the
parents is always the best case because a school district needs
to be advised for all the kids. He renmarked that he doesn't see
anything in the bill <concerning the districts wanting nore
oversight fromthe [EED], and that he is concerned with what the
[EED] is doing in ternms of gifted and talented prograns,
staffing, as well as dollars diverted to the [EED] and not the
school districts.

MR, JOHNSON answered that [the EED] has heard from the GI
(gifted and talented) constituency that they would like [the
EED] to be involved in receiving the plan of service for gifted
and talented children, which comes to [the EED] on an annual

basi s. He noted that right now [the EED] receives this but
there is no staff to review it or to offer suggestions or
technical assistance to be sure that it neets all the
requi renents of the current state statute. He said he thinks
[the CET constituents] are asking that [the EED] get nore
involved in that process. He nmentioned that [the CET
constituents] would like [the EED] to visit districts and
nonitor the prograns. He added that [the constituents] also

want their rights for due process hearings and nediation to be
avai lable. He remarked that [the EED] does not have the dollars

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- March 14, 2001



to provide nediation from the state because [the EED] does not
receive it from the federal governnment and there are no |oca
dollars to support GI progranms in the budget. He stated that
[the EED] is able to use the due process training opportunity to
train hearing officers for GI disputes as well. He renarked
that the threat of being able to participate in the [GI due
process hearing] nmakes a big difference in parents' capacity to
advocate for the needs of their children.

Nunber 2040

CHAIR BUNDE, referring to the fiscal note, stated that $103, 000
is not relatively insignificant to the budget plans.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked what staffing would be necessary on
the district level to [fiscally] provide the gifted and tal ented
prograns and the | EPs due process hearings.

MR. JOHNSON responded that [the EED] is |ooking at very nodest
staffing to provide that kind of service. In order to nonitor
and avoi d excess costs and additional state enployees, [the EED]
would contract with a group of know edgeable, trained people
that woul d do the nonitoring review

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if there is a way for a parent to go
through a due process [procedure] if his or her child was not
excessively gifted, or did not have any handi caps.

MR. JOHNSON answered that there is not a system set up for the
[ EED] to acconplish that. He remarked that [the EED] is often
requested to settle local disputes of that nature, but if there
is no direct authority, [the parents] are directed back to their
| ocal school districts.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked whether there is a process for
[those parents] where [the EED] is not involved.

MR. JOHNSON stated that he couldn't speak for every district.
He remarked that every district that he has worked for has had a
public conplaint process in which [the parents] follow the chain
of command with their conplaint; if they are not satisfied, they
can ultimtely request sonething before the |ocal school board.

Number 1892

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if this process is in place already.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- March 14, 2001



MR, JOHNSON answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if a [parent] of a "regular" student
as well as a parent of a gifted student could go through several
processes in order to be heard and satisfied without this bill
in place.

MR, JOHNSON replied that |ast year, specific to GI, [the EED]
suggested that there be processes at the local level. He stated
that the feedback was that [the parents] felt it wasn't
satisfactory, and they didn't want to |lose the rights given to
them over the last 30 years by being included in this area of
exceptional children.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if sonmething new is put on this bil
whet her there would be a huge junp in cost [because parents
woul d want to take advantage of it].

MR. JOHNSON remarked that [parents] currently have this right
under the |aw. Gfted and talented students and children with
disabilities are lunped under a single law called "exceptional
children.” The only thing that [the EED] has done is split the
"exceptional child" title into two divisions: one for children
with disabilities, the other for children identified as gifted
and tal ented. [ The EED] has tried to maintain all the rights
that those famlies currently have.

CHAI R BUNDE expl ai ned that the $100,000 fiscal note would allow
gifted and talented students and their parents to continue to do
what they do right now.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked why the bill is necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS responded that [it is necessary] because
the federal governnent changed the law so that IDEA only refers
to children with disabilities and no |onger includes gifted and
talented [children].

MR. JOHNSON stated that the federal governnent never provided
any funds for GI. [The EED] tended to comm ngle the funds, but

in an audit was told it could no I|onger do that. He remarked
that the major reason for this law is to conme into conpliance
W th new federal requi renents regar di ng chil dren W th

disabilities.

CHAI R BUNDE sunmmari zed that he thinks Al aska, and probably other
states, chose the category of exceptional children in order to

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- March 14, 2001



i ncl ude special education and gifted and talented students. The
federal governnent says that the noney cannot be used for gifted
and talented [prograns] but only for the nore traditional
speci al education services. He remarked that this bill would
allow the parents of gifted and talented children to still have
t he appeal process available to themas they had in the past.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if all children have [the appea
process avail abl e].

CHAIR BUNDE responded that [GET] has the sane procedure that
speci al education has, which is nore than the average child has.
He asked M. Johnson to give his views on the description of
"l east restrictive".

Nunmber 1682

VR. JOHNSON stated that [the EED| believes the "l|east
restrictive environnent” clause in the proposed |egislation
doesn't mnimze the opportunity for a district to serve those
kids outside of their nornmal program In a nunber of prograns
in the state, young people spend their entire day in a single
center, where they don't necessarily interact wth other
children on a regular basis, but are served individually. He
stated that [the EED] believes the IEP teans have determ ned

with parent involvenent, that this is an appropriate educationa

environment; therefore, it is not overly restrictive.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that he has heard from parents of gifted and
talented children that they are concerned that this |egislation

woul d preclude special <classes for gifted students. He
explained that this interpretation of "least restrictive" wll
still allow the current practice of having CET classes and
progr ans.

MR, JOHNSON remarked that this is [the EED s] interpretation

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS stated that the change right now would say
that the determ nation of whether or not a child should be sent
to an educational program or a residential school outside the
child's community or school district would reside wth the
school district and not the departnent. She stated that she is
concerned that sone districts may not have the capacity in their
adm nistrations to nake those decisions. She asked why this was
changed.

Number 1555

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- March 14, 2001



MR. MALONEY explained that the change was made to reflect that
the IEP team rather than [the EED], nakes that determ nation.
Any placenent decision that has to do with the child, whether
the student would be in a regular classroom or in the nost
restrictive setting such as an out-of-state placenent, would be
an | EP team deci sion. He clarified, in terns of whether the
[EED] is involved, that they have been working on a nore gl obal
level with districts and other agencies involved, particularly
with kids who are in state custody, to help districts to address
t hose needs appropriately.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if that has the sanme appeal process
as all the others.

MR. MALONEY replied certainly, that anything covered under | DEA
97 always has the same official conplaint processes.

Number 1496

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if [the EED, regarding this special
due process procedure] wants the gifted to be pushed under the
sane "unbrella"” as the special education students.

MR. MALONEY answered that the due process procedure under the
existing law is the sanme for gifted and talented, kids wth
disabilities, and special education [students]. He stated that
the change to special education in the double-tiered system
would be nade to the gifted procedures. Therefore, the gifted
woul d al so becone a single-tiered procedure. He expl ained that
the difference with gifted due-process-hearing procedures, as
opposed to the special education due-process-hearing procedures,
is that nmediation is not offered because it is a federally
funded |IDEA 97 special education process. Instead of the
requi renent that nediation be offered during a gifted due
process hearing, there is a pre-hearing conference at which the
parties would get together to discuss their needs and determ ne
whether or not a settlenent could be reached or whether the
hearing needs to go forward. He remarked that one of the
purposes of the bill is to clarify that some pieces do not apply
to GET that do to special education

REPRESENTATIVE W LSON remarked t hat t here are sever al
classifications of children now gifted, bilingual, vocationa
education, and special education. She stated that the gifted
are being singled out. She asked what is being done for the
bi lingual and the vocational education.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- March 14, 2001



MR. MALONEY responded that [the EED] is not [including them
under the sanme "unbrella"].

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if there is the possibility that one
of these groups [bilingual or vocational education] would ask
why sone groups are singled out while these are not.

MR. JOHNSON responded that he thinks that one of things that
di stingui shes GET and children with disabilities from the other
two bl ock-funding categories is a 30-year history of including
them under this category of exceptional children. He stated
that [the EED] is trying to nmaintain that history. He renarked
that there are no specific federal rights for bilingual and
vocational education students to be included; that would be a
| ocal decision. He added that there could be a separate set of
statutes, outside of t hose for exceptional children, for GET
students, but the advocacy groups do not want this.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON agai n asked, if nothing different is being
done, why there needs to be |egislation.

MR. JOHNSON responded that [the EED] is bringing its statutes
into conpliance with the new federal requirenents for children
with disabilities. In further response, he said [the EED is
under corrective action.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if it is fair to say that [the EED] could be
brought under conpliance using all the current funding for the
initial special education and by not putting GI in its category
for appeals.

MR. JOHNSON answered that that woul d be correct.
Nunmber 1159

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said it seens that many things in the bil
do not have to be done in order to conply wth federa
regul ati ons.

MR, JOHNSON replied that right now there is a set of statutes
that require essentially the sane oversight and program
devel opment that are in this bill. He stated that this has been
happening for 30 years and that constituencies would like [the
EED] to continue to do that. He added that this body could dea

wth GI' in a very different way since there is no federal

requi renent for GI.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- March 14, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if any funds woul d be | ost.
MR. JOHNSON stated no, there is no GI federal funding.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if there would be a change in how
everybody [in GI] is treated in the school systens.

MR. JOHNSON answer ed no.

CHAIR BUNDE remarked that this would perpetuate the status quo
and that the legislature could chose to elimnate the special
treatment of GET students.

Nunber 1047

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked if there is going to be any inpact
from the [high school] exit exam on special education. He al so
asked how a student gets into special education [late in his or
her school career].

MR. JOHNSON answered that under the current |aw regarding pupi
conpetency, special education students, other than the npst
severely disabled children who will not be on a diplona route,
woul d have to neet the requirenents of the exit exam Q her
t han enhancing the capacity for learning, there is no advantage
to being identified as a special education student. He stated
that some of the current proposals would treat special education
students differently in relationship to the exit exam and all ow
nore |EP determnation on what that particular student would
need to qualify. He remarked that there has been the concern
that there are increased advantages to being identified as a
child with a disability and that there would be a surge in the
direction of identified such students.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked, on the federal |I|evel, whether ASD
[ Anchorage School District] had discussed tackling the issue of
discipline for students with disabilities.

MR. MALONEY answered that the federal regulations regarding the
special education |IDEA 97 do have significant pieces on
disciplinary actions addressing the needs of kids wth
disabilities. He stated that [the EED] has incorporated those
regulations into its existing regulations. [The EED s] strategy
is to identify the federal statute guiding this bill, indicate
that [the EED] is going to inplenent the procedures contained in

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- March 14, 2001



the federal regulations, and address that through regulation and
trai ni ng.

Number 0812
CHAIR BUNDE renmarked that there were a nunber of questions

brought up at the previous neeting from commttee nenbers and
those who testified. He stated that [the EED], in response,

felt the bill had been crafted with the client groups in mnd
and chose not to nake any changes. He said there are two issues
before [the conmittee]. One is whether the commttee should try

to solve the problem or stall awhile since there is not nuch
pressure and there is no noney |oss. The other issue is whether
the commttee would Iike to make adjustnments in the formof a CS
(commttee substitute).

Number 0724

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER nmde a notion to adopt a conceptual
amendnent that would strike the word "fully" on page 12, line
23, because he stated that parents will never be fully inforned.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked if there could be sone |anguage to
put some onus on the school district to nmake an attenpt to
informthe parents.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER stated that he would accept "reasonable
attenpt to inform™

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked if notification by letter would be a
reasonabl e attenpt to inform

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS renarked that this has to do with the due
process hearing; therefore, it wuld be in a face-to-face
setting.

MR. MALONEY stated that this is for any action for which the

parent is signing consent. He explained that the |anguage is
there to make sure that the parent has [given] full, inforned
consent . He clarified that there is reasonableness in the

standard in trying to do that.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that there will need to be sone clarity as to
whether this is federal |anguage or not. He announced that the
proposed anmendnent was [tabl ed].

Number 0492

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- March 14, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked what the |anguage "creative talent”
means on page 17, line 16, when defining gifted children.

MR. JOHNSON responded that the fine arts and creative talents
are in existing law and so that's been carried forward. He
added that there are districts that are providing services to
identified students wth those particular talents, not just
academ c talents. He clarified that it would be the
extraordinary talents that the districts would be [|ooking
t owar d.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if this would be a local option to define
"creative".

MR. JOHNSON answered that it woul d.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS remarked that she is confused about what is
[federally required] and what is not in the bill. She asked if
it would be possible to have that determ nation.

MR. JOHNSON responded that [the EED] has prepared a side-by-side
analysis to highlight what is a federal [requirenent] and what
is flexible at the state |evel. He added that all of GI is
under | ocal state control

CHAIR BUNDE clarified that if a section of the bill refers to
gifted and talented, it is a local option, and if it refers to
speci al education, it is a federal requirenent.

Nunber 0179

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER stated that he assunes "inforned consent"
applies to children with disabilities as well as to gifted and

t al ent ed. He asked: If it is federal |anguage, which would be
interpreted to be a reasonable standard, why can't it say
[ "reasonabl e"] instead of | eaving the anbi guous, easily

litigated "ful ly"?

MR. JOHNSON responded that the definition under the federal |aw
st at es: The parent has been fully informed of all information
relevant to the activity to which consent is sought in his or
her native | anguage or ot her node of conmunicati on.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked whether, if the commttee changes
one word - "reasonable" - [the bill] would be in violation.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- March 14, 2001



MR, JOHNSON answered that he thinks there is sone discretion
al ong the sane notion of reasonabl eness.

Nunber 0074

PH LI P REEVES, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Human  Servi ces
Section, Cvil D vision (Juneau), Departnent of Law, stated that
everything that is in federal statutes and regulations is stil

going to apply to whatever is put in the state statute and
regul ati ons. For exanple, parents have a concern with how the
Anchorage School District is providing education to his or her
child, or what type of consent they've been given, they can cite
to the state law or the federal law, and the court wll grant
what ever gives the person the greatest protection. He stated
that there doesn't need to be identical |anguage; in this case,
he said, there isn't the risk of inconsistent provisions because
it would default to the federal provision, which clearly
provides the term "fully" within it and has a "reasonabl eness”
conponent . He commented that one of the suggestions is that
this should be done in all cases not cited to the federal |aw,
however, he said, his concern is that if there is not identica
| anguage sooner or later there will be inconsistent provisions.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked if a dispute in this area that ends
up in state court would be a dispute over the state |aw.

TAPE 01-15, SIDE A

MR. REEVES answered that |DEA gives the option to the parent to
bring an action in either state or federal court. The federal
| aw would be applied in the state court, and the federal |aw
woul d be | ooked to for interpretation to the state | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER asked why the conmittee is passing a state
| aw, then

MR. REEVES stated that the federal governnent has nandated
states to inplenent a state program Rat her than trying to
restate this, the law is just citing to it. There are sone
areas where there are flexibilities to the state, where the
state has provided nore protections than the federal |aw, or
where there's flexibility in sone areas to have different
pr ocedures. He remarked that nost areas in the state |aw deal
with those type of things where the state has sone option as to
how it wants to run a program In the areas where the state
doesn't have an option, it has been "conpacted" in this bill to
cite to the federal |aw.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- March 14, 2001



Number 0243

CHAI R BUNDE asked if it would be accurate to say that this is
being done only to nmaintain sone advantage for the gifted and
tal ent ed.

MR. REEVES replied that there are two sections: a section for
children with disabilities and a section for gifted children.
He stated that alnost all of the proposed changes in the
children-with-disabilities section are tweaking the current |aws
to get into conpliance with the new | anguage of IDEA 97. In the
gifted section, the intent has been to carry over the current
pr ogram Under the current law there isn't a gifted and
disabilities section; it's just for exceptional children. He

stated that some of the problens exist because as the federa
| aw provides nore protections or nore conplex procedures, the
current |law applies those all to the gifted children. He stated
that even parents of gifted children don't consider that to be
reasonabl e. For exanple, they don't care for |east restrictive
environment, which is a fundanmental principle of federal |aw for
children with disabilities. He explained that that is part of
the reason for separating these out, to continue to conply with
the federal requirenents for children with disabilities but to
not have to necessarily apply requirenments that are not very
reasonable to the gifted program

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER stated that he doesn't understand why [the
commttee] is doing anything if a case in state court would
still defer to the federal |anguage.

Nunmber 0468

Chair BUNDE remarked that [without the legislation], the GET
woul dn't be conti nued. He asked if there are court precedents
t hat cover reasonabl eness under "fully infornmed.”

MR. REEVES answered that nuch of the case law is scattered
across the country; sone is in state court, sonme is in federal
court, and sone is under the due process proceedings. Al of
those types of cases are brought forward in a due process
hearing or in court to be suggested as precedent that should be
fol | oned. He remarked that he is not aware that there is a
Ninth Crcuit [Court of Appeals] case that deals with that.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- March 14, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if [the commttee] is creating a
problem by having [inforned consent] reiterated in statute
wi t hi n Al aska.

MR. REEVES responded yes. He remarked that renmoving "fully”
from the definition will not cause a great problem but he
doesn't believe it is going to change how it is interpreted. |If
federal law were to change, then the state wouldn't be tied to
| anguage in that way.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS asked what the tineline is to confortably
deal with the issues [the commttee] may have.

MR, JOHNSON stated that he thinks it is a year-by-year call as
to whether or not [the EED] is in jeopardy of not receiving the
funds.

Number 0619

CHAIR BUNDE remarked that there isn't a sense of urgency at this
point that would require [the conmttee] to do sonmething that it
is not entirely confortable wth.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that she doesn't know what schoo
districts, across the state, think about all of this.

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER remarked that he has a bias about the
gifted and talented program in general because it seens there's
a lot of things preferential to a group that seens to need the
| east anount of individual help.

REPRESENTATI VE GQUESS shared that her neighbor who is nine or ten
years old was in the elenentary school in her district,
Anchor age. He had a 130 1Q and sat in second grade bored wth
teachers who said they weren't trained to teach him therefore,
he turned off at school and stopped doing work. She stated that
his parents were distraught and couldn't get a response fromthe
school district. She remarked that [the state] does have an
obligation to these children.

[HB 71 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Education neeting was adjourned at 9:56
a. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- March 14, 2001



HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- March 14, 2001



